
 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 7, 2021 

 
A.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL: 
The Governing Board of the Laytonville Unified School District held a regular meeting in the Board 
Room via Zoom on October 7, 2021.  Board President Calvin Harwood called the meeting to order at      
6:30 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
Trustees Present: Calvin Harwood, Meagen Hedley, Elina Agnoli, Mat Paradis  
Administrators Present: Joan Potter, Lorre Stange and Tim Henry 
Student Representative: Mahaila Reighter 
 
B.  PATRIOTIC OBSERVANCE: Board President Calvin Harwood led the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the flag.  
 
C.  ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: 

• Motion to approve the Agenda by Meagen Hedley, seconded by Mat Paradis, 
unanimously approved with a 3-0 vote. (Board Member Agnoli arrived late) 

 
D. CORRESPONDENCE:  

• Letter from Becky Jeffries, Assistant Supt. of Business & Admin. Services re: the County 
Office Review of the 2021/22 Adopted LCAP 

 
E.  PUBLIC INPUT: None  
 
F. REPORTS AND COMMENTS:  
 
Superintendent’s Report: 

• Mrs. Potter began by sharing that the last positive case we had within the District was on 
September 17th and the total count since school began is 5 positive cases at the 
Elementary School and 7 cases at the High School. All cases have been community 
spread. Athletes continue to be tested twice weekly and/or 24 hours before a game and 
others that choose to be tested can do so upon request. Mrs. Potter will be meeting with 
the Health Center to talk about sharing a position that would be administering testing.  

• Enrollment is up to 356 (LHS -103, LES -243). October 6, 2021 was CBEDS days and 
that is when a snapshot is taken of our enrollment and unduplicated counts. Our 
unduplicated count was down to about 62% in 2020/2021 but we are now up to 76%. 
LCFF contribution is increased for anything over 50%. 

• Facilities: Out buildings have been painted and reroofed. Mrs. Potter has reached out to 
Valley Paving regarding the parking lot and playground at the Elementary School. Ms. 
Stange and Mrs. Potter met with a playground consultant to look at replacing the 
playground equipment at the Elementary school. The next step will be to look at the 5 
year facilities plan for the District. 

• Meetings are back to being in person, however for the public there is still the option of 
tuning into the meeting via Zoom. In the event that the District needs to go back to virtual 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

meetings, there is a Resolution that can be approved by the Board allowing meetings to 
take place virtually.  

• A Closed Session item regarding Discipline/Dismissal/Release needs to be discussed at a 
Special Meeting next week   

 
The following reports were given: 
Elementary Principal-   High School Principal-   Healthy Start- None  
LES/LMS Site Council-  LHS Site Council- None   DAC-  
Student Representative-   LVTA-     CSEA- 
 
G.  ACTION: CONSENT AGENDA 

• Motion to accept the Consent Agenda by Elina Agnoli, seconded by Meagen Hedley, 
unanimously approved with a 4-0 vote. 
 

H.  ACTION:  
 
H.1. Students of the Month   

• Mr. Henry presented the Student of the Month for Laytonville High School and had him 
introduce his family.  

• Motion to recognize Drew Hoteling as the LHS Student of the Month for September and 
his family by Meagen Hedley, seconded by Mat Paradis, unanimously approved with a 4-
0 vote.     

 
I.  DISCUSSION / ACTION:   
 
I.1. Adoption of Keys to Algebra Curriculum for 9th-12th Grade 

• Mr. Henry discussed the Keys To Algebra Curriculum 
• Motion to Adopt the Keys to Algebra Curriculum for 9th-12th Grade by Elina Agnoli, 

seconded by Meagen Hedley, unanimously approved with a 4-0 vote.  
 
I.2. Approval of ESSER III Expenditure Plan 

• In order to receive the ESSER III funding, school districts must submit an ESSER III 
Expenditure Plan to its county office of education (COE) for review and approval, after 
public adoption by its governing board, on or before October 29, 2021. Attached is the 
expenditure plan for Laytonville Unified School District that was created with input from 
DAC, staff and the LCAP.   

• Motion to approve the ESSER III Expenditure Plan by Mat Paradis, Seconded by Meagen 
Hedley, unanimously approved with a 4-0 vote.  

 
J.  INFORMATION ITEMS: None 
 
K.  ITEMS BOARD MEMBERS WISH ON FUTURE AGENDAS: None   
 
L.  COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD: Thank you Culinary Arts for the muffins. It’s so nice 
to have a student representative again. Thank you Jenna and Joanie for being so on top of 
COVID testing the classes.  
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

M.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Motion to adjourn the meeting by Elina Agnoli, seconded by Mat Paradis, unanimously 
approved with a 4-0 vote. The meeting was adjourned at 7:35 P.M.  The next regular meeting 
will be held on November 4, 2021. 
  
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted,     Adopted as Final  

         November 4, 2021 
  
   
 
________________________________          __________________________________ 
 Joan Viada Potter      Calvin Harwood 
        Secretary to the Board             President of the Board 

 
 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF OCTOBER 19, 2021 

 
A.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL: 
The Governing Board of the Laytonville Unified School District held a special meeting in the Board 
Room via ZOOM on October 19, 2021.  Board Clerk Meagen Hedley called the meeting to order at 
8:35 AM 
 
ROLL CALL: 
Trustees Present: Erin Gamble, Meagen Hedley, and Elina Agnoli  
Administrators Present: Joan Potter 
Student Representative:  
 
B.  PUBLIC INPUT re CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:  
 
C.  CLOSED SESSION AGENDA: 
  

CS-1 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE   CS-1 
CS-2 CONSIDERATION OF STUDENT MATTER     CS-2 

    
D.  ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM CLOSED SESSION: Board Clerk Meagen Hedley 
announced that on Closed Session Item 1: Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release, the 
Board voted unanimously to dismiss Arro Kanavle and to accept the resignation of Lindsey Van 
Loan. No other action was taken in Closed Session.  
 
E.  ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: 

• Motion to approve the Agenda by Erin Gamble, seconded by Elina Agnoli, unanimously 
approved with a 3-0 vote. 

 
F.  PUBLIC INPUT: None 
 
G.  DISCUSSION / ACTION:   
 
G.1. Approval of Revised 2020/2021 Unaudited Actuals 
• When the county office reviewed Unaudited Actuals they recommended some changes on both the 

Debt and Asset forms.  
• The Asset form tracks changes in capital assets and depreciation.  The correction was needed due to 

the discovery of an outdated Capital Assets workbook.  Once the formulas in the workbook were 
adjusted the new report reflecting the updated numbers was generated.   

• The debt form is used to track bond obligations, OPEB liability and compensated absences. The 
wrong number was picked up for the OPEB liability and when discovered, the correction was made.   

• The changes have no effect on Cash or the Unaudited Actuals numbers as they effect the budget. 
• Due to the adjustments made, an updated Official Unaudited Actuals DAT file had to be generated 

and sent to the Mendocino County Office of Education.   
• Motion to approve the changes to the Capital Assests and Debt Forms in the Updated 2020/2021 

Unaudited Actuals by Elina Agnoli, seconded by Erin Gamble, unanimously approved with a 3-0 vote.  
 
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
H.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Motion to adjourn the meeting by Erin Gamble, seconded by Elina Agnoli, unanimously 
approved with a 3-0 vote.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:15 am. The next regular meeting will 
be held on November 4, 2021. 
 

Respectfully submitted,     Adopted as Final  
         November 4, 2021 
 
 
_________________________________                    ___________________________ 
 Joan Viada Potter      Meagen Hedley 
        Secretary to the Board             Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 

 
  

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT ORDER #5 2021/22 

November 4, 2021 
 
   Employment Position     Status    Salary        Effective 
 
Certificated Appointment 
 
Certificated Resignation 
 
Certificated Layoff 
 
Certificated Leave of Absence 
 
Certificated Transfer                
 
Classified Appointment  
  
Classified/Confidential Appointment 
 
Classified/Confidential Resignation 
 
Classified/Confidential Reduction 
 
Classified Transfer 
 
Classified Resignation/Retirement 
Van Loan, Lindsey     Bus Driver            Prob.  $18.78/hr.   10/15/2021 
 
Classified Termination 
Kanavle, Arro    Bus Driver                       Perm.  $17.52/hr.    10/15/2021 
 
Classified Layoff 
 
Coaching Positions 
Craver, Alyssa   LMS Boys Basketball   $1400 Stipend     11/1/2021 
Harlan, Carissa  LHS Girls’ Basketball   $1800 Stipend     11/1/2021 
Firks, Josh   LHS V Boys Basketball  $1800 Stipend     11/1/2021 
Hernandez, Michael  LHS JV Boys Basketball  $1400 Stipend     11/1/2021 
 
  



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

  

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REVOLVING CASH FUND #5 2021/21 

November 4, 2021 
 
DATE  CHECK #  PAYEE  REFERENCE  AMOUNT 
 
10/21/2021 2199   U.S.P.S.  Stamps   $232.00 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

  

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

  
LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

WARRANT LIST 
November 4, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT 

November 4, 2021 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  

 

    
   

     
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
  



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
  

LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BUDGET TRANSFERS 

November 4, 2021 
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 
 



 
 

                                                                       
Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
  



 
 

                                                                       
Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
  

 



 
 

                                                                       
Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

BOARD ACTION ITEM J1 
 
Board Meeting Date:  November 4, 2021 
 
Subject:   Students of the Month 
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
Ms. Stange and Mr. Henry will present the Students of the Month for Laytonville Middle School 
and Laytonville High School for the month of October and have them to introduce their families.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Recognize the Students of the Month and their families 
 
Attachments:  
None 
  

    
    

   
 

    
    

   
 



 
 

                                                                       
Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 

 



 
 

                                                                    
 

BOARD ACTION ITEM J2 
 
Board Meeting Date:  November 4, 2021 
 
Subject:   Scheduling of Annual Organizational Meeting 
 
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
Education Code Section 35143 requires the Board of Trustees to hold an annual organizational 
meeting; this traditionally occurs in December during the regularly scheduled Board meeting.  
We will elect a President and Clerk, make committee assignments, adopt a calendar of meeting 
dates for 2022, and obtain signatures from each Board member. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Schedule the Board’s annual organizational meeting for Monday December 13, 2021 
 
Attachments: 
None  

    
    

   
 

    
    

   
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

  

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM K1 
 
Board Meeting Date:  November 4, 2021 
 
Subject: PUBLIC HEARING: Federal Impact Aid Program, Budget, 

BP 1261 and AR 1261 
  
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
  
LUSD is one of approximately 630 school districts that receive Federal Impact Aid funding.  
Federal regulations including Section 8004 of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act and 
Board Policy 1261 call for an annual Public Hearing to be held in November to allow an 
opportunity for American Indian parents to discuss the educational programs supported by Impact 
Aid funds.  We have posted a Public Hearing Notice for 10 days, including at the Tribal Center. 
 
Federal Impact Aid funding is provided to districts with tax free entities in their jurisdictions such 
as Indian reservations and military bases.  The purpose of the money is to offset the loss of tax 
revenue, to support the district’s instructional program and to ensure that Indian children receive 
educational services equal to those received by non-Indian children.  The revenue is based on a 
complex formula and has ranged from $25,000 to $45,000 over the past 12 years.  BP and AR 
1261, known as Indian Policies and Procedures (IPP’s), provide Indian parents with the 
opportunity to participate in the discussions related to their students’ instruction, and they provide 
the Board an opportunity to gather information concerning the American Indian community and 
its views on education. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation: 
Conduct the Public Hearing 
 
Attachments: 
BP 1261 
AR 1261 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
Community Relations        BP 1261(a) 
 
IMPACT AID PROGRAMS 
 
 
Annual Impact Aid Public Hearing and Advisory Committee Formation 
 
In compliance with the requirements contained in Title I of Public Law PL-874 and Amendments 
contained in Public Law 95-561 as set forth in 34 CFR, Section 223.109, an annual meeting shall 
be held to discuss the use of impact aid funds prior to the submission of the district's application 
for Federal Impact Aid (PL-874) funds. The uses of these funds by the district shall be discussed 
at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees. When program and funding changes are to be made, 
tribal officials and parents or guardians will be encouraged to make recommendations and to 
present their views regarding the uses of the funds. Notice of the meeting shall be sent to the Tribal 
Council and all PL-874 parents or guardians 10 days prior to the date upon which the meeting is 
to be held. 
 
When specific recommendations are made as to modifications, deletions or additions to program 
or services offered to students with these funds, they shall be given serious consideration by the 
Board. All recommendations will be studied as to their impact upon personnel and other programs 
or services, and if appropriate, the Board shall appoint an advisory committee to study the issues 
involved and make a report to the Board. The advisory committee shall be composed of a 
representative cross-section of the community, including Tribal Council members and PL-874 
parents/guardians. 
 
The advisory committee's report shall be provided to the Tribal Council and the PL-874 parents or 
guardians. Any community members may attend the advisory committee sessions and shall have 
the right to comment during the meetings upon the recommendations, their effect upon personnel, 
programs, or services and upon the report of the advisory committee. The recommendations shall 
be forwarded to the Board which will deliberate and act upon them. The Board's decision regarding 
to the recommendations shall be final. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy LAYTONVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
adopted:  September 9, 2004 Laytonville, California 
Revised: September 11, 2014 
 

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
Indian Policies and Procedures      AR 1261 (a)   
Impact Aid Programs  
 
It is the intent of the Laytonville Unified School District that all Indian children of school age 
have equal access to all programs, services and activities offered within the school district.  
To this end, the Laytonville Unified School District will consult with local tribal officials and 
parents of Indian children in the planning and development of Indian Policies and Procedures 
(IPPs), general education programs, and activities. These policies and procedures will be 
reviewed annually and revisions will be made within 90 days of the determination that 
requirements are not being adequately met. 

Section 1. Attestations 
The Laytonville Unified School District attests that it has established Indian Policies and 
Procedures (IPPs) as required in section 7004 of the Impact Aid law for any children claimed 
who reside on eligible Indian lands.  The IPPs have been adequately disseminated to the tribes 
and parents of children residing on eligible Indian lands. A copy of the current policies and 
procedures was attached to the FY 2021 Impact Aid application.  
The Laytonville Unified School District attests that it has provided a copy of written responses to 
comments, concerns and recommendations received from tribal leaders and parents of Indian 
children through the Indian policies and procedures consultation process and  disseminated these 
responses to tribal leaders and parents of Indian children prior to the submission of their FY 2021 
Impact Aid application. 
 

Section 2. Indian Policies and Procedures 
The following Indian policies and procedures become effective upon school board approval.  

Section 3. Policy 1: The LEA will disseminate relevant applications, 
evaluations, program plans and information related to the LEA's education 
program and activities with sufficient advance notice to allow tribes and parents of 
Indian children the opportunity to review and make recommendations. 
[34CFR222.94(a)(1)] 
 
Procedure 1: 
The Laytonville Unified School District will disseminate information and seek timely input 
regarding the following programs on its educational program (including, but not limited to): 
Title I, Part A, Title II, Part A, Title VI, Part A, subpart 1, Title VII-Impact Aid programs. 
 
The completed applications, evaluations, and program planning will be made available to 
parents of Indian children, Tribal officials, and the District Advisory Committee and a 
summary will be prepared and disseminated to the tribe via email and a summary will be 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

sent home to parents of Indian children with the students ten days in advance of public 
hearings held in November and June to afford all interested parties the opportunity to review 
the documents with sufficient time to provide thoughtful input at the public meetings. These 
hearings will be publically advertised by posting in public places, including the Tribal 
Office, and on the District Webpage to allow all interested parties to attend.  In addition, 
representatives from the District will schedule meetings with the Cahto Tribe to seek input in 
October and May of each school year.  Announcements will be mailed home to the parents 
of Indian children. 
 
Parents of Indian children, tribal officials, the District Advisory Committee and any other 
interested persons can review assessment data to help develop or modify educational 
programs and services allowing for the participation of Indian students on an equal basis in 
the district. 
 
Minutes from the District Advisory Committee meetings will be posted on the District's 
website for all patrons and Tribal officials to review. This will allow for ongoing 
dissemination of information. 

Section 4. Policy (2): The Laytonville Unified School District will provide an 
opportunity for the Cahto Tribe and parents of Indian children to provide their 
views on the District's educational program and activities, including 
recommendations on the needs of their children and on how the District may help 
those children realize the benefits of the educational programs and activities. 
[34CFR222 .94(a)(2)] 
 

(i) Notify tribes and the parents of Indian children of the opportunity to submit comments 
and recommendations, considering the tribe's preference for method of communication, 
and 

(ii) Modify the method of and time for soliciting Indian views, if necessary, to ensure the 
maximum participation of tribes and parents of Indian children.  

Section 5. Procedure 2:  
In order to allow Indian parents and tribal officials to make commentary concerning  (1) 
the needs of their children and the ways in which they can assist them in realizing the 
benefits of the education programs; (2) the overall operation of the District's education 
program; and (3) the degree of parental participation allowed in the same, the Board will 
provide questionnaires to the tribal office and tribal officials will request parent input and 
recommendations in the fall and will thereafter hold an annual Board meeting where 
such commentary may be reviewed by Indian parents, Tribal officials, and the Board.  If 
participation in the survey results in a low return rate or the established meeting yield low 
participation by the parents of Indian children and tribal officials, the Laytonville Unified 
School District will re-evaluate its plan and consult with parents of Indian children and 
tribal officials on ways to improve and enhance participation in the consultation process.   



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

The Laytonville Unified School District may re-locate meetings or times to encourage 
participation. 
 
The District Advisory Committee of the Laytonville Unified School District will meet 
monthly for the purpose of addressing comments and concerns of parents of Indian children 
regarding the District's educational programs and activities. The meeting agendas are posted 
and all meetings are open to the public allowing for tribal officials as well as parents of 
Indian children the opportunity to submit comments and recommendations for 
consideration. 
 
A school board representative is a member of the District Advisory Committee. This 
representation allows for the discussion of the needs of the students and ideas to be brought 
forward to both the Indian Education Committee as well as the School Board. 
 
At each of the monthly school board meetings, a section of time is set aside for 
communications from the public. This is a time to offer comments and suggestions 
regarding programming for Indian students.  In addition, two public hearings are scheduled 
in November and June which are specifically devoted to addressing questions regarding 
federal programs. Based upon suggestions, preferred methods of communication as well as 
ways to maximize participation from tribal officials as well as parents of Indian children 
will be seriously considered. 
 
Information will be included in student handbooks/enrollment packets regarding 
opportunities to provide input to the District. 
 
The District and District Advisory Committee representatives will schedule meetings with 
the Cahto Tribe to discuss ongoing programming goals. 
 
The District will consult with the Cahto Tribe to ascertain the tribe’s preferred method of 
communication.  The District will, to the extent possible, accommodate the tribe’s preferred 
method of communication.  

Section 6.  POLICY (3): The Laytonville Unified School District will annually 
assess the extent to which Indian children participate on an equal basis with non-
Indian children in the District's education program and activities. 
[34CFR222.94(a)(3)] 
 

(i) Share relevant information related to Indian children's participation in the LEA's 
education program and activities with tribes and parents of Indian children; and 

(ii) Allow tribes and parents of Indian children the opportunity and time to review and 
comment on whether Indian children participate on an equal basis with non-Indian 
children.  

Procedure 3:  



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

The Laytonville Unified School District will take the following measures to annually assess the 
extent to which Indian children participate on an equal basis with non-Indian children in the 
District's education program and activities.   

A. The Laytonville Unified School District will monitor Indian student participation in all 
academic and co-curricular activities. 

B. School district officials will review school data to assess the extent of Indian 
children’s participation in the District’s educational programs on an equal basis. 

C.  The Laytonville Unified School District will share its assessment of district funding, 
Indian student participation, related academic achievements and other related data will be 
shared with the parents of Indian children and tribal officials during Distict Advisory 
Committee meetings and meetings in October and May of each year with the Tribal 
Council 

D.  Parents of Indian children, tribal officials and other interested parties may express 
their views on participation through direct communication with the school district, at any 
school board meeting or to the District Advisory Committee. 

E.  Copies of annual reports will be provided to tribal officials. 

The Laytonville Unified School District shall annually analyze participation rates of Indian 
children compared to other children in all aspects of the educational program and school 
sponsored activities.   

The Laytonville Unified School District's Superintendent and school staff, in conjunction with 
the District Advisory Committee, will review annual survey data and comments gathered from 
families and students.  

The results of the data and its comments will be shared with all interested parties in the district.  
In addition comments and/or suggestions brought forth from these conversations will become 
part of the Committee's approved minutes.   

This data will be utilized to develop appropriate supports for various programs. 

During the public hearings in November and June, the school district will gather information 
relating to Indian children's participation in the LEA's education programs and activities. This 
information will also be made available to the parents of Indian children, tribal officials and the 
District Advisory Committee via minutes from the meetings   

If it is determined that there are gaps in Indian participation in the educational program or 
activities, the Laytonville Unified School Board in consultation with the District Advisory 
Committee and tribal officials, will modify its education program in such a way as to improve 
Indian participation. 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

Section 7. POLICY (4): The Laytonville Unified School District will modify 
the IPPs if necessary, based upon the results of any assessment or input described 
in this document. [34CRF222.94(a)(4)] 
 

Procedure 4:  

The Laytonville Unified School Board will establish an ad hoc committee of Indian parents and 
Tribal officials ("the Indian/Parent Committee") to annually review the components the Indian 
Policies and Procedures to ensure that they meet federal regulatory and statutory requirements.  

The District Advisory Committee shall serve as a task force to review the meaningfulness of 
Indian input, to review the extent of opportunity for Indian input and to review the District's 
response to Indian commentary. The Committee will review the effectiveness of the District's 
methods of gathering the input of Indian parents and Tribal members; calculate the number of 
Indian suggestions which were actually implemented; permit Indian parents and Tribal officials 
to suggest more effective ways of communicating their views. If necessary, the District Advisory 
Committee shall make recommendations to the Board to modify its policies and procedures. 

The Laytonville Unified School District will hold a Board meeting to modify policies and 
procedures if the Indian/Parent committee indicates such modification is necessary. 

The Laytonville Unified School District School Board will determine which changes are 
implemented.  All changes to the Indian Policies and Procedures become effective upon approval 
by the school board.  

The Laytonville Unified School District will notify parents of Indian children, tribal officials and 
the general public of any changes to the Indian Policies and Procedures by posting at tribal 
offices and on the district Website.   

Section 8. POLICY (5) : The Laytonville Unified School District will respond 
at least annually in writing to comments and recommendations made by tribes or 
parents of Indian children, and disseminate the responses to the tribe and parents of 
Indian children prior to the submission of the IPPs by the LEA. [34CRF222 
.94(a)(5)] 
Procedure 5: 

The Laytonville Unified School District will at least annually respond in writing to comments 
and recommendations made by the District Advisory Committee, tribal officials, or parents of 
Indian children, and disseminate the responses by email to the tribe,  a summary will be sent 
home with  students to the parents of Indian children with instructions on how to obtain a full 
copy, and  by posting at tribal offices and on the District Website prior to the submission of the 
IPPs by the District to the Impact Aid Program.  
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

Section 9. POLICY (6): The Laytonville Unified School District will provide a 
copy of the IPPs annually to the affected tribe or tribes. [34CR F222.94 (a)(6)] 
 

The Laytonville Unified School District will annually provide a copy of the current 
Indian Policies and Procedures to the Cahto tribe by email, posting at tribal offices, and 
on the District Website. 

Section 10.  

Only a tribal chairman or an authorized designee for a tribe that has children attending an LEA’s 
schools may file a written complaint with the Assistant Secretary for Elementary and Secondary 
Education regarding an action pursuant to, or relevant to, Indian Policies and Procedures. 

 
Level 1:   Level 1 is informal and may be written or verbally expressed to the 

Superintendent's designee. The objective is a quick and informal 
resolution of the concern.  

 
Level 2:  If the grievance is not resolved at Level 1, the grievant may submit the 

complaint in writing to the Superintendent of Schools. The grievance 
shall state the specific nature of the grievance, the specific resolution 
requested and must be signed by the grievant(s).  

 
 The Superintendent shall investigate and attempt to resolve the 

grievance. A written report regarding the decision of the 
Superintendent shall be sent to concerned parties within 30 days after 
receipt of the written grievance.  

 
 If the Superintendent does not satisfactorily resolve the grievance, 

either party may advance the grievance to level 3.  
 
Level 3:  A written appeal may be presented to the Superintendent for placement 

on the Board's agenda.  The Board of Trustees shall attempt to resolve 
the grievance. A written report regarding the decision of the district 
shall be sent to all concerned parties within 30 school days.  
Discussions or committee meetings on the issue may extend the 
resolution process for another 30 day period. 

 
 If the Board does not satisfactorily resolve the grievance, either party 

may advance the grievance to Level 4. 
 

Level 4:  The grievant may refer the complaint to the Secretary of the 
Department of Education. Complaint procedures are found in the 
Impact Aid Program. 

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

10. State law prohibits the Board from delegating its legal responsibility.  The Trustees retain 
final authority for the established policies, procedures and school programs affected by 
this act. 

 

Board Approval Date November 7, 2019 

Revised Date: August 9, 2018 

Reviewed: 8/9/18, 11/1/18, 12/12/19, 12/14/20 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM K2 
 
Board Meeting Date:  November 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Administrative Regulation AR 3231 for Impact Aid, First Reading 
  
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
New regulation addresses requirements of Title VII Impact Aid, which provides assistance to 
districts with concentrations of children residing on lands owned by the federal government, 
including Indian lands.  Districts with children residing on Indian lands are mandated to adopt 
policy and procedures with specified components, including, but not limited to, consultation with 
Indian tribes and parents/guardians of students living on Indian lands in the planning and 
development of programs and activities supported by Impact Aid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Review AR 3231 
 
Attachments: 
Administrative Regulation 3231 
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM K3 
 
Board Meeting Date:  November 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Administrative Regulation 6173.4 for Title VI Indian Education 

Program 
  
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
New regulation reflects major requirements for districts that receive federal Title VI Indian 
education funding, which supports local educational agencies, Indian tribes and organizations, 
and consortia in meeting the unique cultural, language, and educational needs of American 
Indian students and ensuring that all students meet challenging state academic standards. 
Districts receiving such funding are mandated to adopt procedures to ensure that the program 
will be operated and evaluated in consultation with, and with the involvement of, 
parents/guardians and family members of American Indian students and community 
representatives. Regulation also includes allowable expenditures of Title VI funds, the provision 
of professional development as needed, maintenance of student eligibility records, and 
distribution of program evaluation results. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Review AR 6173.4 
 
Attachments: 
Administrative Regulation 6173.4 

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM K4 
 
Board Meeting Date:  November 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6174 for Education 

for English Learners, First Reading 
  
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
As our numbers of English Learners has increase over the past few years, our Board Policy and 
Administrative Regulation 6174 need review and refinement to ensure that we are implementing 
a strong program.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Review BP & AR 6174 
 
Attachments: 
Administrative Regulation and Board Policy 6174 
 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

Laytonville Unified School District 
November 4, 2021 

BOARD DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM K5 
 
Board Meeting Date:  November 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Increase Rate of Pay for Substitute Teachers 
  
From:    Joan Potter, Superintendent 
 
Explanation: 
 
Our Substitute teacher pay has not increase since 2008. In comparing our current sub pay to 
other school in the County, I am proposing the following: 
 
Currently sub pay is: 
 

• $105.00/day for non-credentialed  
• $120.00/day for credentialed 

 
I propose increasing both non-credentialed and credentialed substitutes to $150.00/day effective 
immediately  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve increasing sub pay for credentialed and non-credentialed to $150.00/day 
 
Attachments: 
None 


	Section 1. Attestations
	Section 2. Indian Policies and Procedures
	Section 3. Policy 1: The LEA will disseminate relevant applications, evaluations, program plans and information related to the LEA's education program and activities with sufficient advance notice to allow tribes and parents of Indian children the opp...
	Section 4. Policy (2): The Laytonville Unified School District will provide an opportunity for the Cahto Tribe and parents of Indian children to provide their views on the District's educational program and activities, including recommendations on the...
	Section 5. Procedure 2:
	Section 6.  POLICY (3): The Laytonville Unified School District will annually assess the extent to which Indian children participate on an equal basis with non-Indian children in the District's education program and activities. [34CFR222.94(a)(3)]
	Section 7. POLICY (4): The Laytonville Unified School District will modify the IPPs if necessary, based upon the results of any assessment or input described in this document. [34CRF222.94(a)(4)]
	Section 8. POLICY (5) : The Laytonville Unified School District will respond at least annually in writing to comments and recommendations made by tribes or parents of Indian children, and disseminate the responses to the tribe and parents of Indian ch...


